

between city of Aurora and the Aurora Police Association

JANUARY 1, 2019 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF AURORA AND AURORA POLICE ASSOCIATION

JANUARY 1, 2019
THROUGH
DECEMBER 31, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE 1. COPIES OF AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE 2. NON-DISCRIMINATION, ASSOCIATION ACTIVITY AND FAIR SHARE	1
ARTICLE 3. LEAVE SHARING PROGRAM	2
ARTICLE 4. UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT	2
ARTICLE 5. ANNUAL LEAVE	3
ARTICLE 6. PERSONAL LEAVE	3
ARTICLE 7. LEAVE OF ABSENCE	3
ARTICLE 8. PAID INJURY OR ILLNESS LEAVE	4
ARTICLE 9. SAFETY AND HEALTH	4
ARTICLE 10. HEALTH INSURANCE	4
ARTICLE 11. DENTAL INSURANCE	5
ARTICLE 12. GROUP LIFE INSURANCE	5
ARTICLE 13. WAGES	5
ARTICLE 14. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	6
ARTICLE 15. BENEFIT INCREASES REQUIRE AGREEMENT/CHANGES TO EMPLOYEE MANUAL	7
ARTICLE 16. SAVINGS CLAUSE	8
ARTICLE 17. OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY TIME	8
ARTICLE 18. WORKING OUT OF RANK	10
ARTICLE 19: SICK LEAVE	10
ARTICLE 20 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT	11

ARTICLE 21. I	EMERGENCY LEAVE	11
ARTICLE 22. I	HOLIDAYS	11
ARTICLE 23. 1	MATERNITY LEAVE	12
ARTICLE 24. I	PAID INSURANCE FOR SURVIVORS	12
ARTICLE 25. 1	FUNERAL EXPENSES	12
ARTICLE 26. 1	MILITARY LEAVE AND MOBILIZATION	13
ARTICLE 27. 1	POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH PLAN	13
ARTICLE 28. 1	DEFERRED COMPENSATION	14
ARTICLE 29.	TERM OF AGREEMENT.	14
SIGNATURE P	'AGE	15
APPENDIX A.	2019 WAGE SCHEDULE	16
APPENDIX B.	2020 WAGE SCHEDULE	17

PREAMBLE

This Agreement between the City of Aurora, herein referred to as the "City", and the Aurora Police Association, herein referred to as the "Association", is designed to promote the improvement of labor relations between the City of Aurora and the commissioned officers of the Police Department, to protect the public health, safety, and welfare by assuring at all times the orderly and uninterrupted operations and services of City government. It is understood that this Agreement was negotiated in good faith and shall not be violated or abridged in any way by either party.

ARTICLE 1. COPIES OF AGREEMENT

The City shall furnish to the Association twelve (12) copies of this Agreement and shall provide members of the bargaining unit access to this Agreement through electronic means, prior to commencement of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2. NON-DISCRIMINATION, ASSOCIATION ACTIVITY AND FAIR SHARE

- **Section 1**: The provisions of this Agreement in accordance with applicable federal and state laws shall be applied equally to all employees without discrimination as to race, religion, color, gender, sex, creed, age, sexual orientation, disability, ancestry, genetic information, veteran status or political affiliation, governed only by the limitation of the law regarding bona fide occupational qualifications.
- **Section 2:** No department supervisor or representative of the City shall discriminate against any employee because he has formed, joined or chosen to be represented by the Association or because he has given testimony or taken part in any grievance procedure or other hearings, negotiations or conferences as part of the Association recognized under the terms of this Agreement.
- **Section 3:** When the Police Chief or his/her designee has granted prior approval, Association officials or representatives shall be allowed time away from their assigned duty station in order to conduct Association business. Nothing herein shall limit the discretion of the Police Chief or his/her designee in approving such time off.
- **Section 4:** The City agrees to deduct the Association membership or initiation fees, dues, general or special assessments from the monthly gross pay of each officer who individually requests in writing that such deduction be made. The Association shall designate the amount of the deduction and the aggregate amount of such deduction shall be remitted, together with an itemized statement, to the Association no later than the fifteenth day of the month in which such deductions are made. The written authorization for deduction hereunder shall remain in full force and effect until revoked in writing by the officer.
- **Section 5:** The Association agrees that it will indemnify and save the City harmless from all suits, actions and claims against the City or persons acting on behalf of the City whether for damages, compensation, or any other combination thereof arising out of the City's

compliance with the terms of Section 4 herein unless such damages are caused by the City's mistake. The Association shall reimburse the City for any and all reasonable costs and attorney's fees arising out of the defense of any such action against the City. The City agrees to cooperate with the Association and its counsel concerning any such litigation.

ARTICLE 3. LEAVE SHARING PROGRAM

All members of the bargaining unit shall be allowed to participate in the leave sharing program implemented by the City and pursuant to the rules and regulations of that program, and the City agrees that the program described in the Employee Manual (January 2018 version) shall not change for members of the bargaining unit during the term of this Agreement unless the Association agrees to such changes. A Police Officer recommended by the Association shall be appointed by the Chief on the leave sharing committee for decisions that affect members of the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 4. UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT

Section 1: During the term of this Agreement, the City shall pay for all leather gear purchased, replaced, or repaired for all Police Officers.

Section 2: The City shall provide one pair of shoes and one pair of boots that conform to Department policy. When several types of footwear are approved for wear by the Chief of Police, the Officer shall be allowed to choose the type that he/she prefers under this provision. The City shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the expense of repair and replacement for all footwear provided by the City. When footwear needs to be resoled, the Police Officer shall select any sole consistent with the rules and regulations of the Aurora Police Department.

Section 3: The City shall provide a clothing allowance of \$30.00 per month for non-uniform Police Officers.

Section 4: The City shall provide five (5) full uniforms to each Police Officer. Each full uniform shall consist of one summer shirt, one pair of pants and one winter shirt. In addition, the City shall continue to provide one jacket, one raincoat, one hat and necessary ties.

Section 5: The City shall provide a vest allowance of \$1000.00 of the cost of purchasing a soft body armor vest provided that this allowance shall be made available to each Police officer only one time every four years. If the vest is rendered unserviceable due to Police related activity, the City shall pay the full cost for replacement of the vest. If the City receives federal funds for the purchase of vests, the money will be used to reimburse the officer up to the full cost of the vest. The Police Officer may purchase the vest from the City's supplier in the same manner as any other equipment. If the vest costs more than the allowance, the Police Officer shall pay the difference. Also, the Police Officer may purchase the vest at any other supplier and submit the receipt for reimbursement up to the amount of the allowance.

ARTICLE 5. ANNUAL LEAVE

Section 1: The vacation schedule for all officers shall be as follows:

Before completion of 2 yrs.	(4160 hrs.)	80 hours
After completion of 2 yrs.	(4160 hrs.)	88 hours
After completion of 3 yrs.	(6240 hrs.)	112 hours
After completion of 4 yrs.	(8320 hrs.)	120 hours
After completion of 5 yrs.	(10400 hrs.)	128 hours
After completion of 6 yrs.	(12480 hrs.)	136 hours
After completion of 10 yrs.	(20800 hrs.)	144 hours
After completion of 14 yrs.	(29120 hrs.)	184 hours
After completion of 20 yrs.	(41600 hrs)	200 hours

In calculating vacation accrual rates, Police Officers who were lateral hires will be given credit for three (3) additional years' experience with the City (e.g., a lateral hire with three (3) years' experience with the City shall accrue vacation at the same rate as a non-lateral hire with six (6) years' experience with the City).

Section 2: Vacations shall be taken pursuant to the Employee Manual (January 2018 version) except that whenever, in the opinion of the Chief of Police, due to excessive work loads and/or lack of personnel, a Police Officer is unable to utilize vacation accrued in excess of 260 hours which has been previously scheduled and approved, he/she shall be compensated at his/her hourly rate for each and every hour above the maximum accrual.

ARTICLE 6. PERSONAL LEAVE

Effective January 1, 2019, after completion of one (1) year of continuous service, all members of the bargaining unit shall receive twenty-eight (28) hours of personal leave with pay each calendar year. The eight (8) hour increase in personal leave from the 2017/18 Agreement is in recognition of the January 1, 2019 discontinuance of the practice of adding eight (8) hours each year to the annual leave banks for officers not in administrative positions within the Department.

Personal leave may not be taken in increments of less than two (2) hours and may not be accrued from year to year. Any personal leave that is not utilized in the year in which it accrues shall be lost and there is no compensation for unused personal leave.

ARTICLE 7. LEAVE OF ABSENCE

All commissioned police officers may apply for a leave of absence of up to one (1) year for purposes of continuing their education or to deal with hardships. Requests for leave without pay must be approved by the Chief of Police and the City Manager. However, leave without pay which is given pursuant to the City Charter regarding criminal allegations against police officers shall not be subject to above procedures and limits, but rather shall be subject to the language contained in the Charter.

All annual leave must be exhausted before a leave without pay may be granted, except maternity leave or when leave without pay is used in disciplinary action, or when the Police Chief approves leave without pay for an employee's professional activities. Any leave taken pursuant to FMLA shall not be considered leave of absence under this Article. During a leave without pay of more than one (1) work shift, an employee does not accrue vacation, sick leave, retirement, or step increase. Failure of a police officer to return from a leave without pay shall result in termination. A police officer on leave without pay for more than one (1) calendar month must pay the full cost of insurance benefits.

ARTICLE 8. PAID <u>INJURY OR ILLNESS LEAVE</u>

Paid injury or illness leave shall be granted to all Police Officers pursuant to the provisions of section 4.16 (Injury Leave Policy) of the Employee Manual (January 2018 version). In the event a Police Officer suffers a job-related illness or injury, Police Officers remaining in the employ of the City may be granted up to two thousand eighty hours (2,080 hours) of paid leave in connection with the illness or injury. Nothing in this Article shall affect a Police Officer's rights under the FMLA.

ARTICLE 9. SAFETY AND HEALTH

The City shall endeavor to conform to and comply with applicable Federal and State regulations regarding the safety and health of its employees during hours of employment.

ARTICLE 10. HEALTH INSURANCE

- **Section 1:** Effective January 1, 2019, the City shall contribute an amount up to \$1,441.18 per month for family coverage, \$1,083.96 per month for employee plus one, and \$567.76 per month for singular coverage toward the cost of the premium in a group health insurance plan offered by the City to its employees.
- **Section 2:** Effective January 1, 2020, the City shall contribute an amount up to \$1,513.24 per month for family coverage, \$1,138.16 per month for employee plus one, and \$596.14 per month for singular coverage toward the cost of the premium in a group health insurance plan offered by the City to its employees.
- **Section 3**: The parties shall negotiate any future changes in health care plans offered by the City.
- **Section 4:** All payments towards group health insurance premiums paid by Police Officers shall be paid from pre-tax compensation unless the Police Officer elects to pay the premiums with post-tax compensation.

ARTICLE 11. <u>DENTAL INSURANCE</u>

Section 1: Effective January 1, 2019, the City will contribute an amount up to forty five dollars ninety six cents (\$45.96) per month toward the cost of family or single coverage in either of the dental insurance plans offered by the City.

Section 2: Effective January 1, 2020, the City will contribute an amount up to forty eight dollars twenty six cents (\$48.26) per month toward the cost of family or single coverage in either of the dental insurance plans offered by the City.

Section 3: All payments towards group dental insurance premiums paid by Police Officers shall be paid from pre-tax compensation unless the Police Officer elects to pay the premiums with post-tax compensation.

ARTICLE 12. GROUP LIFE INSURANCE

During the term of this Agreement, the City shall provide group life insurance coverage for each Police Officer in the bargaining unit in an amount equal to each Police Officer's annual salary rounded off to the next highest one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) if not an even multiple of one thousand, and dependent life insurance in an amount of one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) for each dependent. Officers may purchase additional coverage at their own expense.

ARTICLE 13. WAGES

Section 1: The 2019 base salary schedule for the Police Officers is shown in Appendix A as attached hereto. Police Officers shall be placed on the salary schedule in 2019 as provided therein. Police Officers at Step I on December 31, 2018 who remain employed by the City at Step I at the same rank on December 1, 2019 shall be entitled to a one-time, non-pensionable, not part of base, payment of \$750 on the first pay period of December 2019.

The 2020 base salary schedule for Police Officers is shown in Appendix B as attached hereto. Police Officers at Step I(C) on December 31, 2019 who remain employed by the City at Step I(C) at the same rank on December 1, 2020 shall be entitled to a one-time, non-pensionable, not part of base, payment of \$750 on the first pay period of December 2020.

Section 2: <u>Step Increases</u>. All Police Officers holding rank of Patrol Officer, First Grade or higher, shall receive step increases as set forth in Appendices A and B for that rank.

The step increases provided in Appendices A and B shall be made as described within those Appendices, provided that the Police Officer receives a satisfactory performance evaluation for that year, up to the maximum step for the rank on the salary schedules in Appendix A and B. Failure to receive a satisfactory performance evaluation in any given year shall result in no step increase for that year.

Failure to qualify for a step increase in any given year shall not result in the loss of any step increases earned in prior years.

Police Officers who promote ranks shall be placed in the lowest step in the new rank that results in at least a 2% (two percent) wage increase for the Police Officer. This shall not apply to Police Officers in the assignment of Patrol Officer Specialist, Police Sergeant Specialist, or Agent Specialist; rather, Police Officers in those assignments who promote shall be placed in the lowest step in the new rank that results in a wage increase from the step the Police Officer occupied in the rank without the assignment (Patrol Officer I, Police Sergeant or Police Agent).

Section 3: For all officers hired after January 1, 1997 who are eligible for the death and disability coverage provided under §31-31-811(4), C.R.S., the City shall make the required contribution to the death and disability fund for the years 2019 and 2020.

ARTICLE 14. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1: A grievance under the Agreement shall be confined to an alleged violation of any express provision of this Agreement and shall not include any disciplinary matters. Any Police Officer or group of Police Officers may discuss any matter with their supervisor without invoking the formal grievance procedure provided for in this Article.

Section 2: A grievance must be initiated by either an aggrieved Police Officer or by the Aurora Police Association on behalf of any one or more individual Police Officers. The grievant must reduce the grievance to writing and present the written grievance to the office of the Chief of the Police Department within ten (10) working days after the grievant knew or should have known the facts which gave rise to the grievance and, to trigger the Chief's response time, send the grievance via email to all Deputy and Division Chiefs.

The written grievance should contain:

- (a) a written statement of the grievance and the facts upon which it is based;
- (b) a written allegation of the specific wrongful act and harm done; and
- (c) a written statement of the remedy or adjustment sought.

Section 3: The Chief of the Police Department or his designee shall meet with the grievant and, if the grievant is an individual, representatives of the Aurora Police Association in an effort to resolve the grievance within ten (10) working days after being presented with the written grievance. The Chief of the Police Department or his designee must respond in writing to the grievance within ten (10) working days following the meeting with the grievant and/or representatives of the Aurora Police Association.

Section 4: If the grievance is not resolved to the satisfaction of the Association by the Chief of the Police Department or his designee, the Association may appeal the grievance to the City Manager within ten (10) working days of receipt of the written answer of the Chief of the Police Department or his designee. Within ten (10) working days after receipt of the appeal, the City Manager or his designee shall meet with the grievant and if the grievant is an individual, with representatives of the Aurora Police Association to discuss the grievance. Within ten (10) working days after this meeting, the City Manager or his designee shall give the Association his answer in writing.

Section 5: Within ten (10) working days after the City Manager has issued his written decision, if the Association is dissatisfied with the decision, the Association shall give written notice to the City Manager of its intent to arbitrate. Within ten (10) working days of the written notice of intent to arbitrate, the parties shall attempt to select a neutral arbitrator, to hear and determine the dispute. In the event the parties are unable to agree upon a neutral arbitrator, either party or its representatives may request a panel of seven (7) arbitrators from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service, and the parties shall choose the arbitrator by counter-striking the names on the list received. The findings of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding on all parties concerned.

Section 6: The Arbitrator shall have the authority to hold hearings and make procedural rules.

- **Section 7:** The findings of the Arbitrator shall be consistent with law and with the terms of this Agreement. The Arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify, any of the terms of this Agreement.
- **Section 8:** The cost of any arbitration as well as the Arbitrator's fee shall be borne equally by the parties to the Agreement.
- **Section 9:** Either party may request a Certified Court Reporter to take a stenographic record of the evidence taken at an arbitration hearing. If such stenographic record is taken, a copy of the transcript shall be provided to the Arbitrator. The party requesting a stenographic record shall pay the cost thereof, except that if the other party shall request a copy of any transcript, the parties shall share equally the entire cost of making the stenographic record.
- **Section 10:** The term "working days" as used in this Article shall be inclusive of Mondays through Fridays during which the administrative offices of the City are normally open. The term "working days" shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays.
- **Section 11:** The number of days indicated at each level of the grievance procedure shall be considered as a maximum unless said limit is mutually extended.
- **Section 12:** Nothing contained in this Article is intended to interfere with or abridge any constitutional rights of its employees to petition the City.

ARTICLE 15: BENEFIT INCREASES REQUIRE AGREEMENT/CHANGES TO EMPLOYEE MANUAL

- **Section 1:** During the term of this Agreement, no benefit provided under this Agreement shall be increased for any member or the bargaining unit unless the Association agrees in writing.
- **Section 2:** During the term of this Agreement, whenever the City implements changes in the Employee Manual (January 2018 version), copies of such changes shall be sent immediately to the Aurora Police Association as they occur for information purposes only.

ARTICLE 16. SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement is subsequently declared by the proper legislative or judicial authority to be unlawful, unenforceable, or not in accordance with applicable statutes or ordinances, all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 17. OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY TIME

Section 1: Overtime shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half times (1 1/2 X) a Police Officer's regular hourly rate. Accordingly, such overtime shall not apply to Lieutenants or Captains, except as specifically authorized by the Chief of Police. Overtime is defined as work performed in excess of the hours normally scheduled for any one (1) shift (either eight (8), nine (9), or ten (10) hours depending on assignment) and/or work performed in excess of forty (40) hours in any consecutive seven (7) calendar day period for Police Officers working on a seven (7) day duty cycle. For Police Officers assigned a duty cycle longer than seven (7) days, overtime shall include any hours worked over forty (40) per week when the weekly average of hours worked during the duty cycle is calculated.

For Police Officers assigned to a twelve (12) hour shift, overtime is defined as work performed in excess of the hours normally scheduled for any one (1) shift and/or work performed in excess of forty three (43) hours in any consecutive seven (7) calendar day period for Police Officers working on a seven (7) day duty cycle. For Police Officers assigned a duty cycle longer than seven (7) days overtime shall include any hours worked over forty three (43) per week when the weekly average of hours worked during the duty cycle is calculated.

Section 2: <u>Base Pay.</u> Computation of the officer's hourly rate shall be determined by adding the officer's annual base salary and steps, to which the officer is entitled in a given year and dividing that total annual figure by two thousand eighty (2080) hours. Necessary adjustments, because of the mode of payment of any of these items, will be made on an annual basis.

Section 3: Members of the bargaining unit shall be paid overtime pay when those members are off duty and are required to appear for court, authorized administrative hearings, or they are required to come to work to perform police functions. Members will be paid overtime for the actual time worked except that there will be a two-hour minimum overtime pay for being called in from an off-duty status. Members shall receive two hour minimum overtime pay for multiple "show-ups" in the same day as long as the show ups are at different locations or at least two hours apart from one another at the same location. Members who are required to appear in court immediately after their normal tour of duty will be paid overtime for the actual time spent in court. Members who are required to appear in court within two hours immediately preceding their normal duty time will receive the two-hour minimum overtime payment.

The two-hour minimum overtime pay shall also apply to subpoenas to testify in job related civil cases as long as any other monies received from outside sources are turned over to the Department when submitting for overtime payment. When members are required to appear for Internal Affairs investigations or other municipal administrative hearings they shall receive the two-hour minimum overtime payment as long as their testimony is for the City. This section does

not apply to an accused member who appears at an administrative hearing if the alleged charges are sustained.

Members who receive subpoenas for court while they are on suspension without pay shall not be entitled to the two-hour minimum or to overtime pay under any circumstances. All pay shall be at straight time for the actual time spent in court.

Section 4: <u>Compensatory Time</u>. All overtime worked pursuant to the collective bargaining agreement between the City of Aurora and the Aurora Police Association shall be compensated for in either money or time off pursuant to this agreement. All overtime work must be approved by the member's supervisor prior to the work being performed. Time worked will be recorded pursuant to the Department's established record keeping procedures.

After working overtime the member will designate whether he wants to be compensated in money or time off. If the member requests compensation in money, that request will be honored unless a supervisor, for reasonable cause, denies the request. Any such denial is subject to review through the chain of command and ultimately through the grievance procedure of the collective bargaining agreement. If the member requests compensation in compensatory time off, said request shall be granted, absent extraordinary circumstances, until the member achieves a bank of one hundred sixty (160) hours (106.67 hours of overtime worked). If a member has accumulated a bank of one hundred sixty (160) hours or more, then a request for further accrual of compensatory time off must be approved by a Division Chief or his designee.

The maximum amount of time accumulated in a compensatory time bank for each member, subject to proper approval, is four hundred and eighty (480) hours of compensatory time off for overtime worked on or after April 15, 1986.

When a member wants to take compensatory time off which was previously earned, the following procedures will apply. If the member desires to take off a block of time less than forty (40) hours, his request to do so must be granted within fourteen (14) days of the request, except under emergency circumstances. If the member desires to take off a block of time of forty (40) hours or more, the member must make the request to do so at least thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of the time off. The request will be granted unless, in the judgment of the Chief and/or his designee, granting the request at the time in question would unduly disrupt the operations of the Police Department. Under all circumstances, pre-approved vacations take precedence over requests to use compensatory time.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this subsection 4, the City may, at its sole discretion, freely substitute cash, in whole or in part, for compensatory time off for all officers.

Upon termination of employment for any reason, including death, the Police Officer, his beneficiaries or his estate, shall be paid all compensatory time in the member's bank at the time of termination.

Section 5: On-Call/Stand-By. Members of the bargaining unit who are assigned on-call duty and who are specified on a list designated by the Police Chief shall be paid three (3) hours of overtime pay for each calendar week of on-call duty. Members may elect to convert these hours to four and a half (4.5) hours of compensatory time.

Section 6: K-9 Officers. Members of the K-9 unit will be compensated for the care and maintenance of dogs by being credited with four (4) hours of compensatory time at straight time rate per calendar week.

ARTICLE 18. WORKING OUT OF RANK

Section 1: After a Police Officer fills a vacancy and performs duties of a higher rank for one hundred and sixty (160) hours, he/she shall receive pay at the higher rank for all subsequent hours of work in that rank. The one hundred and sixty (160) hours need only be accumulated one time for that rank following January 1, 2006.

Section 2: Whenever a Police Officer enters into a voluntary agreement with the Department to be assigned and performs duties of a higher rank in order to receive training and/or experience in the higher rank, and said agreement is for a predetermined length of time, the Police Officer shall not receive the pay of the higher rank until the one hundred eighty-first (181st) calendar day of performance of the duties of that higher rank.

ARTICLE 19: SICK LEAVE

Section 1: Sick leave shall be considered proper for the sole purpose of wage continuation when a Police Officer:

- 1. Is incapacitated due to illness, non-job related injury, sleep deprivation or disorder, or other bona fide medical condition that would interfere with a Police Officer's ability to safely carry out job-related duties;
- 2. When the Police Officer or immediate family member requires health examinations or scheduled medical treatment;
- 3. To supplement worker's compensation benefits after the expiration of injury leave;
- 4. When the Police Officer is required to be in attendance for the necessary medical care of a member of the Officer's immediate family.

If improper use of sick leave is indicated, supervisors have the authority to request that medical verification for absence be provided. Leave shall be taken according to the sick leave procedure in the Employee Manual (January 2018 version).

- **Section 2:** Each member of the bargaining unit shall accrue one hundred twenty (120) hours of sick leave for each two thousand eighty (2080) hours of regular work.
- **Section 3:** Sick Leave Conversion. Sick leave hours accumulated in excess of established minimums may be converted annually on January 1 at a rate of one (1) hour's pay for each two (2) hours of sick leave up to the established maximum for Police Officers. A sick leave balance of seven hundred twenty (720) hours is required before any payment will be made.

No more than two hundred forty (240) hours may be converted on an annual basis so that the maximum payment in any one year shall be one hundred twenty (120) hours.

Section 4: Payment Upon Separation. Upon separation after five (5) years of continuous service, Police Officers may receive one (1) hour's pay for every two (2) hours of accumulated sick leave provided such separation has not been the result of dismissal for cause. The maximum payment for each Police Officer shall be for four hundred eighty (480) hours of unused sick leave. It is understood that the maximum payment specified in this section, of four hundred eighty (480) hours, is one-half (1/2) of the maximum sick leave accumulation allowed to be converted. In other words, upon separation, no more than nine hundred sixty (960) hours of sick leave may be converted at the rate of two hours accumulated sick leave for one hour of pay; therefore, a maximum payment equal to four hundred eighty (480) hours.

ARTICLE 20. FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT

All members of the bargaining unit shall be allowed to participate in the Flexible Spending Account program pursuant to the rules and regulations of that program.

ARTICLE 21. EMERGENCY LEAVE

The Chief of Police shall allow any Police Officer up to five (5) working days or forty (40) hours emergency leave in the case of an emergency or death involving the Officer's immediate family. Emergency leave may also be granted in the case of natural disaster, such as a home fire or for a medical emergency, and shall include one (1) day for an Officer's attendance at the birth of his/her child.

Minor illnesses, normal childhood diseases, and scheduled medical treatment, including scheduled surgery, shall not be considered emergencies.

ARTICLE 22. HOLIDAYS

Section 1: The following shall be legal holidays for all members of the bargaining unit.

New Year's Day January 1

Martin Luther King Day 3rd Monday in January Memorial Day Last Monday in May

Independence Day July 4

Labor Day 1st Monday in September

Veterans' Day November 11

Thanksgiving Day 4th Thursday in November Friday after Thanksgiving Day Friday after the 4th Thursday in

November

Christmas Day December 25

Section 2: An officer whose work shift commences on the day on which the holiday is observed or an officer whose scheduled day off falls on the day on which the holiday is observed will have eight (8) hours credited toward his/her vacation or compensatory time bank.

ARTICLE 23. MATERNITY LEAVE

The Personnel Policies and Procedures of the City governing maternity leave which are effective April 26, 2014, shall apply to Police Officers regardless of date of hire except that a Police Officer may, at her discretion, utilize any leaves which are available to her or take a leave without pay for the birth of a child within the time frames described in those Personnel Policies and Procedures.

ARTICLE 24. PAID INSURANCE FOR SURVIVORS

Section 1: In the event that a member of the bargaining unit is killed in the line of duty as defined herein, the City shall pay the full cost of health and dental insurance for a surviving spouse (including civil union partner) and children of the member with the following conditions:

- a. The payments for a surviving spouse (including civil union partner) will end two years after the member's death or upon remarriage, whichever occurs first;
- b. The payments for a child will end two years after the member's death or upon the child reaching age 18, whichever occurs first.

Section 2: As used herein and in Article 25, Funeral Expenses, the phrase "line of duty" means acting as a Police Officer, on or off duty, unless so acting while employed by an employer other than the City of Aurora.

ARTICLE 25. FUNERAL EXPENSES

When a member of the bargaining unit is killed in the line of duty (as defined in Article 24, Paid Health Insurance for Survivors), or dies from injuries sustained in the line of duty, the City shall be responsible for the actual funeral and burial expenses incurred by the survivors up to a maximum of fifteen thousand dollars (\$15,000.00).

ARTICLE 26. MILITARY LEAVE AND MOBILIZATION

Section 1. Police Officers shall be entitled to one hundred twenty (120) hours of annual military leave per calendar year pursuant to the Employee Manual (January 2018 version).

Section 2. Any member of the United States uniformed services who is mobilized by order of a state governor on declaration of a civil emergency or because of: war; an Authorization of Use of Military Force (AUMF) by the Congress; a national security crisis declared by the President; or a military deployment by direction of the President, shall continue to accrue vacation, personal leave and sick leave, which accrual shall be credited to the officer when he/she returns from active service, and shall continue to be eligible for step increase in accordance with Article 13, Section 2. The City shall provide medical and dental coverage at no cost to the officer or dependents during such active military service. Additionally, upon return from service, the officer shall have the option of contributing the amount of his/her pension contribution that the officer would have contributed had the officer not been on active duty, and if the officer chooses to contribute such amount, the City shall make the appropriate City contribution to the pension fund.

Section 3. Nothing in this article shall be construed to reduce any rights granted under the Uniformed Service Employment and Reemployment Rights Act.

ARTICLE 27. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH PLAN

Section 1: The City agrees to participate in the Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP), Health Care Insurance Premium Sub-account, for Collectively Bargained Public Employees (Plan) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Plan's Participation Agreement, a copy of which has been provided to the City. The parties hereto hereby designate Nationwide Retirement Solutions (or its successor appointed in accordance with the Plan and Trust documents) to act as Plan Administrator for the Plan and the City agrees to contribute to the Plan as set forth in this Article.

Section 2: Except as provided in Section 3, upon termination of employment (which does not include death) after having completed 19½ years of service or having reached age 55, or qualifying for a disability retirement, a percentage of the eligible police officer's accumulated sick leave and accrued but unpaid vacation that would have otherwise been paid to the eligible police officer had the City not participated in the Plan shall be contributed to the Participant's Health Care Insurance Premium Reimbursement Sub-account. Those police officers who separated from service prior to January 1, 2006 shall not be subject to the Plan. The Association will notify the City of the contribution percentage of the eligible police officers' accumulated sick leave by November 15th of the previous year, as provided in Section 4. This section is further subject to the following restrictions:

(a) The City shall deduct any overpayments to the police officer or other legal offsets due to the City from the police officer prior to the percentage calculation being made, however, before overpayment deductions and other legal offsets are made from accumulated sick leave and accrued but unpaid vacation, the City will first make the

deductions and offsets from other compensable absences of the police officer, if any, and then any remaining balance shall be deducted and offset from the accumulated sick leave and accrued but unpaid vacation; and

(b) The percentage calculation shall be made after the City processes designated deferred compensation contributions or designated roll-overs of the police officer.

Section 3: Police officers who are eligible for fully paid family retiree medical benefits through TRICARE, any other military program or by their status as a Native American through the Bureau of Indian Affairs medical benefit programs shall not be eligible for or subject to the contribution amount set forth in this Article.

Section 4: Annually, the Association reserves the right to modify the funding formulas of the Plan as set forth in Section 2 pertaining to the amount of accumulated sick leave and accrued but unpaid vacation being contributed to the Plan on behalf of the eligible police officers.

ARTICLE 28. <u>DEFERRED COMPENSATION</u>

Section 1: Members of the bargaining unit may participate in any of the deferred compensation plans offered by the City.

Section 2: The City will allow loans to be taken against City administered deferred compensation accounts in accordance with Internal Revenue Service regulations, to the extent permitted by the plan(s).

ARTICLE 29. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective January 1, 2019 and all of its provisions shall remain effective through December 31, 2019. Additionally, all provisions which do not have a budget impact shall remain effective from and including January 1, 2019 through and including December 31, 2020.

The parties to this Agreement mutually desire that all of its provisions shall be and remain effective from January 1, 2019, through and including December 31, 2020. However, in order to ensure compliance with the provisions of the TABOR Amendment, Article X, Section 20(4)(b) of the Colorado Constitution and because the parties recognize that there may be an inability on the part of the City of Aurora to contract at this time for items with a budget impact until such time as the budget process for the fiscal year 2020 is followed, the parties hereby agree that the Association shall reopen this Agreement for negotiations of all items with a fiscal impact (impact on budget) which are to be effective on January 1, 2020 through and including December 31, 2020. This reopener shall be initiated within the time limits specified in Article XV of the Charter of the City of Aurora. In the event the parties are unable to agree that those items contained in the Agreement which by their own terms are to be effective on January 1, 2020 shall be placed

into effect, then that party which refuses to renew the Agreement at that time shall be deemed to have bargained in bad faith during negotiations leading to the 2020 Agreement for any and all purposes.

It is specifically understood and agreed that this conclusion of failure to bargain in good faith shall be utilized by a fact finder, mediator or arbitrator appointed pursuant to Article XV of the of the Charter of the City of Aurora, and may be the basis relied upon by the fact finder pursuant to Article XV to recommend that those provisions contained in this Agreement to be effective on January 1, 2020 should be placed into effect on January 1, 2020.

CITY OF AURORA

Mayor

By: Au M Iwom & City Manager

ATTEST:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

AURORA POLICE ASSOCIATION

Precident

By: MULL Secretary

APPENDIX A CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES/POLICE 2019 WAGE SCHEDULE

POSITIONS	Α	В	С	¹ D	E	F	G	² H	² I
PATROL OFFICER, IV Grade 801	\$55,324 \$4,610 \$26.59808								
PATROL OFFICER, III Grade 802	\$60,306 \$5,026 \$28.99327								
PATROL OFFICER, II Grade 803	\$67,189 \$5,599 \$32.30240								
PATROL OFFICER, I Grade 804	\$74,242 \$6,187 \$35.69327			\$76,865 \$6,405 \$36.95433				\$82,398 \$6,867 \$39.61442	\$7,442
PATROL OFFICER SPECIALIST Grade 809	\$79,440 \$6,620 \$38.19231			\$82,246 \$6,854 \$39.54135				\$88,165 \$7,347 \$42.38702	\$7,963
POLICE AGENT Grade 805				\$84,849 \$7,071 \$40.79279				\$92,082 \$7,674 \$44.27019	
POLICE AGENT SPECIALIST Grade 811				\$90,788 \$7,566 \$43.64808				\$98,528 \$8,211 \$47.36923	\$8,791
POLICE SERGEANT Grade 806				\$92,356 \$7,696 \$44.40192				\$101,454 \$8,455 \$48.77596	
POLICE SERGEANT SPECIALIST Grade 810				\$98,820 \$8,235 \$47.50962				\$108,555 \$9,046 \$52.18990	
POLICE LIEUTENANT Grade 807								\$114,034 \$9,503 \$54.82404	\$10,250
POLICE CAPTAIN Grade 808								\$125,500 \$10,458 \$60.33654	

^{1.} No Police Officer in Grade 804/809, Step A will step into Step D during the year; instead, such Police Officers step to Step H. Police Officers in Grade 804/809, Step D will step into Step H on March 1, 2019 and their evaluation date will be reset to March 1. No Police Officers will be placed in Step D upon promotion and once no Police Officers reside in Step D, Step D is eliminated.

^{2.} At the end of 2019, the steps will be re-lettered to include A, B, and C

APPENDIX B CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES/POLICE 2020 WAGE SCHEDULE

POSITIONS	Α	В	С	D	E	F	G	H (B)	I (C)
PATROL OFFICER, IV Grade 801	\$56,984 \$4,749 \$27.39615								
PATROL OFFICER, III Grade 802	\$62,115 \$5,176 \$29.86298								
PATROL OFFICER, II Grade 803	\$69,205 \$5,767 \$33.27163								
PATROL OFFICER, I	\$76,469							\$84,870	\$91,986
Grade 804	\$6,372							\$7,073	
	\$36.76394							\$40.80288	\$44.22404
PATROL OFFICER	\$81,823							\$90,810	\$98,425
SPECIALIST	\$6,819							\$7,568	
Grade 809	\$39.33798								\$47.31971
								.	
POLICE AGENT								\$94,844	
Grade 805								\$7,904 \$45,59808	\$8,462 \$48.81875
								Ψ+3.33000	Ψ40.01073
POLICE AGENT								\$101,484	\$108,651
SPECIALIST								\$8,457	\$9,054
Grade 811								\$48.79038	\$52.23606
DOLLOS CEDOS ANT								#404 400	Ф440 <u>го</u> г
POLICE SERGEANT Grade 806								\$104,498 \$8,708	
Grade 000									\$53.13702
								Ψσσ.Ξσσ .Ξ	4 000.02
POLICE SERGEANT								\$111,812	\$118,263
SPECIALIST								\$9,318	
Grade 810								\$53.75577	\$56.85721
POLICE LIEUTENANT								\$117,455	\$126,691
Grade 807								\$9,788	
									\$60.90913
POLICE CAPTAIN								\$129,265	
Grade 808								\$10,772	
								\$62.14663	\$67.03317